
UNITED NATIONS 

ECONOMIC 
AND 

GENERAL 
c ~ • "· /It /~ 
E/CN .4/Sub .l/SR.96 
20 March 1952 

SOCIAL COUNCIL 
ORIGINAL: ENGLISH 

c'ONTEN'IB : 

Chet.rman: 

Members: 

COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS 

SUB-CONMISSION ON FREEDOM OF INFOPMATION AND OF THE PRESS 

Fifth session 

SUlJJMARY RECOP.D OF 'l'Illi NINETY -SIXTH MEETING 

Held at Headquarters, New York, 
:·. ·· on Monday, 10 March 1952,. at 3 p. m. 

Draft international code of ethics (E/CN.4/Sub.l/151, E/CN.4/Sqb~l/151/ 

Add .1, E/CN .4/Sub .ljL.lO, E/CN .4/Sub .ljL.ll) (continued) 

AZMI Bey (Egypt) 

Mr. AZKOUL (Lebanon} 

Mr. BINDER (United s·tatea of America) 

Mr. P. H. CHANG (China) 

Mr. GERAUD 

Vi!', ICPEZ 

Mr. PI.EIC . 

Mr. POLLERI CARRIO 

Mr. SILVA CABVAU.O 

Mr. WAITHMAN 

Mr. ZONOV 

'' '• 

(France). 

(Phillpph1es) 

(Yugoslavia) 

(Uruguay) 

(Chile) 

(United Kingdom of Great Britain: and· 
Northern Ireland) · · · 

(Uhim of Soviet Socialist RApuplics) 



E/CN.4./SUb.l/SR.9(J 
Page 2 

!lem;esentati:ve of a Sl'!,Sialized !Bene..x: 

Mr. CARNES United Nations Educational Seientifie and 
CUltural. organization (UNESCO) 

Seeretariat:. 

~f:t:' .• RUM:PB.RE"l Representative of the Secretary-General 

l..U·.. EEK Seere:tary of the SUb-Commission 

DRAFT INT.EaNATIOHAL CODE OF ETHICS (E/CN.4/SUb.l/1511 E/CN.4./stib.l/151/Add.l, 
E/CN.4/Sub.l/L.l01 E/CN.4/Sub.l/Loll) (continued) 

The CliA:m.\1AN invited the Sub-Commission to consider document 

E/CN.4/Sub.l/L.l01 whieh contained the original text of the draft international 

eode of ethiea and all the amendlllants submitted tc it. The Sub...Commiasion would 

vote on tlle various amendments to article I 1 taking first the amendments f'urtheat 

removed from the origina1 text. Mino:r def'eets ot sty1e eou1d be disregarded, 

since they would be remedied later by a drafting committee. 

He put to the vote an ame:xlment "by Mr. Gf!raud consisting in the 

insertion in e.rtiGle I, after the wo::d11 "in commenting thereon" 1 of the words 

"and in deaeribing eontem;porary e:vents by the written word, by word of mouth or 

by any other means of expression". 

That amendment 'WaS adoited bz ~ votes to none 1 with 6 abstentions. 

The CRAIRMAN put to tbe vote the propoaal of Mr. Chang, Mr. Lopez a.ud 

Mr. G6raud to delete the words "and objective" at the end of tbe first sentenee 

in article I. 
It was dee.ided bjt 4 votes to }, with 4 abstentions, to delete those 

words. 

The CRAIRMAN put to the vote an amendm.ent by Mr. Chang and Mr. Lopez 

which applied only to t:b.e English t.ext and 4.\onsisted in replaaing the \i'Ords in the 

first aentenee, "make the utmost endeavour" by "do their utmost". 

The amendment ~~g adopted bz 4 votee to none, with 7 abstentions. 

Mr. BINDER 1 in reply to a question by Mr. PLEIC, said that the 

purpose of his proposal to delete the words "whose vera.eity is open to doubt" in 

the second sentence was to enB'!lre that all items of in:f'orma.tion, and not merely 

the dubious ones, were cheeked. The third sentence of article I eould be deleted 

because it waa re:peti tious. 

It wse q.ecided, by 6 vote a to 4, with one a.batention, to delete the 

WOl"de "whose veraeity ia, OJlen to doubt". 



B/str.)f./&utt.l/81.. ,s 
Paie 3 · 

The CRAlBMAN put to the TOte Mr. Oftoaud' • uen4ment to add the words 

"to the best .. of their ability" atter the wrda "items ot information" iJ1 the 

seeond aenteaoo. 

~e ~~ wa.e ado,m:OO. by 6 votes. to none 1 w:t th ' abeteBtiona. 
MJ;>. Binder's 1!!'2;poM1. to d.elete the third septenee was reje~ed bl 

6 votes to 3, with 2 ·a.br~~tiona. 
*'• WAITm4AN reeal.led that his amelildment to the third sentence vag to 

insert the word "will"ulq" betor~ the .wrd "distorted". He was pre:p&l."ed to 

accept Mr. Lopez's a.mendment, to :f..rulel'tthe vord ndeliberatel;t" befo~e the wo1"d. 

"auppreaeed" in tbe same &a\ tense 1 so that the two ~alXIm.ants eotud be put to 

the vote together. The aentes:.\ee wOuld tb.en read : "No :tact ahe.ll be w:l.lt'Ul.l.7 
distorted or essential :taet deliben.tel.y suppressed." 

The ~oint ~~was ado;et~ b;t 8 votes ... tq none 2• vit,'t\ 3 abutentiona. 

·The CRA.IBMAN stated ·that, 11\ view of the vo·te whieh had juat been 

taken, it vae us:meeessa.ry to vote on Mr. Moulik'at PJ;"''posal, which read: "!'Jle7 
ahal..l not distort taets, C11! aupp."ess essential t&E:ts which may lead to 

distortion 11
• 

·He direeted the S1.l'b ... Commission' G attention to the last sentJmoe ot 
artiale ! or tho Montevideo text. 

Mr. LOPEZ expressed the view that the last sentence sho\lld not be 

isaluded in the m'*tiele beG&use it wu red\1Z).().azlt and prOposed that the 

81.1.'8-eommiaeion vote on that sente!,lee. 

,!Y' 2 votes in tli.Vo\U1' 1, ~ e.g~t, wit~ 4 a'bstent~.ons, the ,Sub-Oonmissio? 

detcided tbat the last aentyQe should not be ineluded in al'tiyle I ot the 

Montevideo text. 

The CH.A.IBMAN cz&ll.ed tor a vote on Mr. (Wmud t s proposal tC:>r the 

Qddi tion ot the tollow:irlg sentaoe at the . elld ot e.rti~le I: "The foregoing is 

a ~tter ot ~eienee". 

Mr .. , <Wn.ud'a Bf!!!!d•t :r.u reJeoted by 4 votes ·~, with 

~ abste:g.tiOlJf.'J. 



'!J§.o ~ eta.Ued for & VQte on Mr. Moulik' s proposal to. t%'1m8l'Ose 

the f'ol.lov1llg •enter.e·fl frofu G.rtiele II to article I: "R\llllOur and \lll£\'onf'irmed 

news ebali b~ idEmtifi~ a.ud tre&ted A.s sueh". 

· · Mr. Mouli~,' &· pJ'6pot,1&]. was reJ~ted- bz 4 votes to l, with 6 ~atentions. 

'flvJ eHAIRMAN .~t._a.te<l tbf.t Mr. Moulik had also proposed that QI'tiale I 

should be divided into partR. 

~. AZKOUL.J aupported by Mr.· LOPEZ, proposed that diseWJsion of' the 

presentation of .&.rtinle· I suggested by Mr. Moulik should be deterred end 

eoneider~ in eonjun~tion with Mr. Che.ng' a proposal, 'Whieh was in the s&me 

ce.tegory. · 

It was so decided. 

· ~ .. : Tho CHAIRMAN put to the vote :.the t"olloving amendM text oi· artiele I, 

and.sOted·t~t the text weuld be sUbJeCt to etylistio ebangel: 

"All engaged in gs.thering, tranmnitti~, dicgemiliating snc1 

eommesting on aews a.in iB · deacarl'b~ flontempon.ry eventB by the 

v:r:itt~u word, 'tly word of mouth or by any othel' mMnl!l of' expreosion, 
. ~ . ' . . 

cooll do their utmo~at to ensure that the information the publi~ 

raeeives is tactUAlly ac~urste. They s~ eheek all itema of' 

into~tion t~ the bent of their ability. No f~t ehall be wilfully 
' . ~ . ' • • ' •. "' • t • • • • "'' • • 

dictorted 6-z.gseentia.l. tnot.dellber&tely supprese~gd." 

Arlicle I a.o ~nded WQ~ aao.pted by 6 votes to ns»e 1 with .5 Rblt~Ctions. 

. The ~ drew. $ot~tior1 tq ~. A,Zkoul'a propo"al for a new a.rtiele 

to be iaserted af'te1' utiel~: I (E/(JfJ.4/Su},.l/L,lO~ :PAge 10). 

Mr. AZKOUL re~alled toot at the preceding meeting the Sub-Commisgion had 

rejeete.d Mr •.. Zo&e;~v1 o. pt'Oporn\l otAtitJ.g that tb,e. tun.dlpnel,'l~l nbliga.tion of . . . - . ' . . . ~ 

J91lZ'lJ.Ql1sta wo to- (lOmb~t aggreu;ion. tll'.d to. fight . tor demooratie principle& 1 to 
•• ' "4 ~ • 

develop tricmdl.y relations bet~ pooplea ~d to oombat 4i.O<'rimiDation. 'l'h! 
proposQl whioh hed .. ~ .~efee.~ed ~ituted. a poaitive 1nJ1mation upon 

JourMJ.iarto,. wtlile, the Utiale he MY ~posea was fundamentAlly dif'tercmt. It 

waa a negative ot&tement calling upon journa.liots to refrQi.rl :f':l-om any pro~ 

/intended 



• 

E/CN.4/Sub.l/SR.96 
Page 5 /9 

intended to :f.m:pair fl•iendly relations 1 provoke threats to tl c :peace cr 

encourage discrimination. The primary obligation of the journalist was to 

conform to the principles set forth in article I and the article he now 

proposed would be of seconda...7 importance. 

It was essential to recognize the influential role which media of 

information coul~ play in the fate of individuals and of nations, and to 

include in a code of ethics an appeal to journalists to refrain from propa­

ganda detrimental to the principles of the United Nations and the cause of 

world peace. 

In anticipation of objections that the c:. s inten(led to 

regulate the conduct of journalists rather than the coatent of their writings, 

he stated that subject-matter was de~lt with in other articles of the draft 

code and that the codes of many groups of journaJ.ists included negative 

statements of a similar nature. In view of the gravity of the situation, an 

exception would be called for, although he himself could not look upon his 

proposal as an excepticn. 

If the code of ethic::; wa.s to be enforced by governments 1 he would 

never have proposed a text which might provide grounds for restriction of 

freedom of information. It was 1 hmrever, lmportant to remember that the 

code was to be a voluntary code 1 which the individual journalist was free to 

follow or disregard, and that there -vrould be no machinery of any kind to 

enforce adherence or impose penalties for violations. The journalist's 

primary obligation would still be to report the truth, but at the same time 

the Sub-Commission should call attention to the importance of exhorting the 

individual not to engage in the t;ypes of propaganda enumerated in the new 

article be now ~roposed. 

Mr. BINDER stated that the negative fcrm in .... ~'!-. •• ' ·: Hr. Azkou1 had 

couched his text did not. entirely eliminate the l. · ..... .:.c:.Uty. The proposal 

seemed to conceive of the jo..lJ"'r.o.list as an indoctrine.tor. It raised the 

problem of who was to judge whether or nat given material constituted 

/p!'opaganda and 



E/r! f~/Cu.b.l/SB.96 
Page 6 

propaganda and seemed to be predicated upon the existence of a tribunal and 

enforcement machinery. Moreover,·as past experience had repeatedly shown, 

it was impossible to make an exhaustive listing in any text. 

He would vote against Mr. Azkoul's proposal, but vished to stress 

that his negative vote should· not be jnterpreted,to mean that be was in 

favour of any. of the types of propaganda enumerated in the text. Article I, 

which the Sub-Commission bad just adopted, would rule out propaganda per ~e. 

Moreover, the principles of the United Nations Charter and other. international 

instruments were applicable to all Me~ber States and to all citizens of those 

states, including journalists. 

In view qf the divergent conceptions of the role of the newspaper­

man,. he -vraa no more able to support Mr. Azkoul's proposal than that of 

Mr. Zono-:v:: .. 

Mr. vlAITHHAN expressed sympathy with .the objectives sought by 

Mr. A~koul, but felt that the article he proposed would do more harm than 

good. While he was in favour of discouraging ne-vrspapermen from writing 

anything likely to provoke threats to the peace, he could not support the 

proposal in its present form. 

Mr • .LOPEZ commended Mr. Azkoul for his ingenuity, but would be 

unable to support the.proposal, which bore some resemblances to that of 

Mr. Zonov. His· qbjection was therefore a matter of degree rather than of 

kind. 

He could not lend his support to any attempt to dictate to press 

personnel what they were to think or to do on any subject • 

. . Mr •. PLEIC c:>'hserved. th~t-"' Alt.h01•gh Mr. Binder hAd contended that 

no one could decide what propaganda was likely to give rise to the 

mld.o~irable .. effects listed in V.r. Az.koul's amendment, he had said ·that he 

himself would not countenance such activities. That showed that Mr. Binder 

himself had some criteria; surely he could apply tb2~. 

/Mr. BINDER 



", --•· .4/Sub.l/SR.96 
Page 7 

M'.r. BINDER replied that his own ideas might well differ from those 

of others; the reporter and the editor must be given complete liberty to 

choose for themselves what should be published, at least until collective 

security and the free flow of information to the peoples had been attained. 

Mr. AZICOUL said that he would have wholeheartedly agreed with 

Mr. Binder•e argument, had the code been intended as a legally binding 

instrument to be interpreted by governments;but it was in fact intended as 

a code for journalists, to be interpreted by journalists without any government 

interrerence whatever. That, indeed, was the purpose of the additional 

article (E/CN.4/Sub.l/L.l01 page 11) he was proposing for inclusion at the 

end of the code. As Mr. Pleic had pointed out, Mr. Binder himself had some 

criteria about deleterious propaganda. It was to be left to the conscience 

of the Journalist himself not to infringe the code of ethics. Only deliberate 

warmongers and preache~s of discrimination would be affected, and even they 

would not be subject to gove::cnmental interference. The c-: ",2 would be violated 

only if the provocative activities were deliberf:'•· • .. .. '.:. proposed new article 

was purposely made subject to the prov·isions of article I, so that the 

obligation to abstain from har~fUl propaganda could not be interpreted as an 

obligation to suppress e.:n.y essential facts. 

Mr. ZOimV would support l.fr. Azkoul' s proposaJ., although the wording 

and purpose were very different from the positive proposals he himself had 

made previously. It could be assumed that most workers in the press and 

information services were honourable persona and could thus be regarded as 

on an equal footing with those who were guided by the Universal Declaration 

of Human Rights, which also was not a mandatory instrument. The code would 

be a guide and.inspiration to the honest journalist; those •J.ho were in 

favour of peace and against discrjmin~tion could properly decide what 

propaganda was likely to impair friendly relations among nations or to 

encourage discrimination. Public opinion was becoming increasingly hostile 

to those who favoured aggression and discrimination; the journalist himself 

must be incre~singly influenced by that trend, and the inclusion of such an 

article in his code of ethics would greatly assist him in reflecting public 

opinion. 
/IVJ.r. GERAUD 



,-.;r ... · l. /- ·,...... , '"''!'! ol" 
.1. '~· '•. ...... .... ·-~- .J •• ,\ ...... ) 

f;tG,; r.l 

Mr. GER.t\JJD asked Mr. AekO\.'tl whether the prohibition of d.ia::trimination 

on grounds of nationality would prevent a journalist from writing against 

German real"'.tllB.ment • 

.V.tr. AZirotJL explained thab he had us.ed the word.a in the sense usual in 

United Nations documents and organs. In e.ey oa.se, it·- ~ ·vhe journalia_t's 

own oonsoianoe to decide whether he was deliberately advooating the kind of 

disor1m.ination condemned by _the United Nations. 

The CHAIRMAN, e.peaking in hie personal eapaeity, said that ho had 

oppoaed Mro Zonov 1e amot"..drnants beoauee they bad seemed to im];lly some interforenee 

With the journalist's fref)dom. Mr. Ar.koul 's proposal, however, wae 

unexceptione.ble; all the aim.<J ho he.d enumerated. .Yare universally a~cepted, in 

particular the UrAeairability of discrimination, ~~. GGraud 1s diaagl~ement 

with Mr. Azkoul o.bout d1ec:r1minat1on on grcund. of nationality was probably d.ue 

to the faet that Mr. Gel11ud. had 'been thinking in legal terms, whereas 

V.tr, Azkoul had intended tho more uati.al social oontext. The te~ used in 

Artiele 2 of the Univereal Declaration of Hu.."TTS.n Rights ~a '*naticnal origin" I 

whieh might wall be substituted fer the word "nationAlity". 

Mr. AZXOUL Booepted that change. 

Mr~ GEP.AUD doubted whether tbat {'l]le.n,sa met his objection; but he was 

even more d.u'bious whether the principle ought to appeal"' in ~: ,.cde of ethioe 

at all. 

Mr. LOP.F..Z said that the point raised. by M:!:'. oeraud showed hew 

d1ffioult it·was to make a satia:faotory enumeration and how mu~h leeway any liat 

might give to misinterpretation. }h•,. Azkoul 'e proposal might prevent the 

publiaation of the views o:f pers~L~ vho we~ in favour of preventive war; ;ret . . ' 

sueh views were legitiirAte ne~·re. Furthermore, soma perfeotly honest :ourna.liats 

might not bol1eve 1n ths p-J.r:poees and prinoiplee of the United Nations; but 

e.d.voeate eome o .. .;her :form of internl!ltional organiz.ationJ eueh. views ought not 

to be eu.ppl"''9aaed. The p~ing of the raferenoe to the United Nations C.barter 

/at the 



E/CN,4/Sub,l/SR.96' 
Page 9 

at the end r;f the proposed article was confusing; it might imply ttat the list 

of aims waa exhaustive -· which it certainly was not -- or that it ~omprised 

principles not embodied in the Charter. In any case, the idea about promoting 

friendly relations between nations was already implieit in the Moond. paragraph 

of the pre~ble. He could not sup,ort M::-. Azkoul 's aJ"":. ~ . 

Mr. PLEIC W*;ndered whether Mr. Lopez could name any outs-~and!:ng a:ld 

honest journalist who did not believe in the :pu-rposes and. principles of t2le 

United Nat iona c 

Mr. ZONOV ccu~ not see any reason for exoluding p~ovisiona already 

embodied in Articles 1 and 2 of the Charter. The Sub-Commission was a 

United Naticns organ~ thus, it ought not to pay any heed. to t.hose '!<Yho did. not 

eubsor1be ·to the purposes and principles of the United Nations. 

The CHAIRMAN remarked that there was nothing eaoroearutt about the 

United Ne.tiona Charter. Many people believed that parts cf it (1 0Uld ";e betterede 

That did not, however, imply that they were hostile to the United Nations as suche 

Mr. AZKOOL replied that his amendment would not prevent a journalist from 

reporting the views of those who favoured a preventive war, unless that were done 

with the del1nerately propaeandist intention of impairing friendly relations 

e.m.ong nations, That was explicitly Sl!aranteed by "'.he re:Pc· u to the principles 

set forth in Article r. While an honest journe.lis·t ~---:.,..~ ... \tell disagree with 

some provisions of the Charter, he eould not possibly publish propa.ga.nd.~ 

deliberately designed to prevent +.he attainment of the purposes end prinGiplee 

of the United Nations. The lia.t was not intended to be exhaustive; it was 

ocmpleted. by the gene1•a.l referenoe to the attaimlent of the purpcsoa and 

prino1plea of the Organization. The argument that the aubeta~e was already in 

the pre~ble was fallaoioua. Tbe preamble dealt only with the principle of 

f'".t"eedom of 1n:f'orma.tion, whereas the wr.enimant dealt with preven·i:tion of the abuse 

of that :freed. em. 

/Mr. CHANG 



· . Mr. CHANG ani Mr. BIND~ auggeeted that Mr~ Azkoul 1e ar..2nl::.nent. ehou.ld. 

'be put' to the vo"i::.e and 'that any proposals for oha.ngee in the text should be 

discussed oply if ·it \'~'as adopted.. 

~.r. Azkoul'a :-unend.ment {E/CN.;4/Sub,lfrt.lo. page 10) w.s re;jeoted b;t· 

f votes to~. with 1 aostention, 

The meeting rose at 5•4·5 p.m. 

20/3 e .m. 




